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VISION AND MISSION STATEMENT

VISION STATEMENT

~

To become industry leader by instilling ethical and moral
values, honest practices according to the Principles of
Islam, offering the best innovative, competitive and
quality products, ensuring direct benefit for all stake
holders.

/

MISSION STATEMENT

o Deliver un-parallel value to customers by continuous
striving and to exceed their expectations;

o Under the guiding principles of Islam, to inculcate the
culture of honest practices, ethical and moral values in
our employees;

o Special emphasis on workforce, health, safety,
environment. Constant motivation of employees by
fair benevolence;

o To ensure reasonable growth and profits of the Group,
to the shareholders on their investment; and

o The Group will assert efforts towards the social
development of society and be instrumental in the
industrial growth of Pakistan.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that 43 Annual General Meeting of Frontier Ceramics Limited (the
“Company) will be held on, Tuesday October 28, 2025 at 09:00 A.M at 29-Industrial Estate, Jamrud
Road, Peshawar to transact the following business:

1. ORDINARY BUSINESS

1.1.  To confirm the minutes of the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on

October 28, 2024.

1.2.  To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended June 30, 2025, together with the Chairperson’s Review
Report, Directors Report and Auditors’ Report thereon.

1.3.  To appoint auditors and fix their remuneration for the year ending June 30, 2026. The
present auditors’ M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being
eligible have offered themselves for re-appointment.

2. SPECIAL BUSINESS

2.1.  To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the following resolution as Special

Resolution, with or without modification, addition(s) or deletion(s):

“RESOLVED THAT approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded in respect of the transactions from/to with related parties, associated
companies and undertaking as tabulated below during the year ended June 30, 2025
in term of Section 207 and / or 208 and/or 199 of the Companies Act, 2017 as
approved by the Board of Directors of the Company.”

Name of Associated

Companies & Loz.m Loan Paid Advz}nce Advzfnce
. Received Paid Received
Undertakings
Toyota Rawal Motors
(Pvt) Ltd 149,088,969 | 319,402,448
Mr. Nadeem Khalid 1,800,000 4,484,000
Rawal Industrial
Equipment (Pvt) Ltd 14,072,182 | 263,784,180
Khalid & Khalid Holdings
(Pvt) Ltd 145,127,502 | 107,634,794

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT approval of the members of the Company be
and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to approve all
transactions which may be deemed necessary from time to time with related parties,
associated companies and undertaking in term Section 207 and / or 208 and/or 199
and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 during the ensuing

year ending 30th June 2026.”
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“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the approval of the members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to extend the loan amount up to Rs 800 million to Khalid
& Khalid Holdings (Pvt) limited in term of 199 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2017 as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company
in their meeting held on October 07, 2025 as per terms and conditions disclosed to
the members for a period of three years @ one-year KIBOR plus 3.25%.”

2.2. Approval of Withdrawal of Land Sale Agreement and Related Matters

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass the following resolution as Special
Resolution, with or without modification, addition(s) or deletion(s):

“RESOLVED THAT in view of the Board’s strategic review and assessment of
prevailing market conditions, the members of the Company hereby approve the
decision of the Board to withdraw the land sale agreement dated January 08, 2021
entered into with the counterparty for a total consideration of Rs. 1.13 billion,
against which an advance of Rs. 750.84 million had been paid.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the members acknowledge that the counterparty
has agreed to refund Rs. 200 million in May 2026, while the further payment if
any, will be paid after June 30, 2026 with mutual agreement between the parties
under further negotiation, as the counterparty has raised concerns over
compensation for withdrawal.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the members of the Company authorize and
empower the Board and management to continue negotiations with the counterparty
to reach an amicable settlement in the best interest of the Company and its
shareholders.”

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT all acts, deeds, and things already done or to be
done by the Board and management in connection with the said withdrawal and
negotiations be and hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company Secretary and CEO be and are
hereby empowered and authorized to take and do, and/or cause to be taken or done,
any /all necessary actions, deeds and things which are or may be necessary for
giving effects to the aforesaid resolutions and to do all acts, matters, deeds, and
things which are necessary, incidental /or consequential to fulfill all requisite legal,
corporate and procedural formalities and any ancillary matters thereto.”

3. ANY OTHER BUSINESS
To consider any other business with the permission of the Chair

A statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act 2017 pertaining to the Special Business is
being sent to the shareholders along with this Notice.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
October 07, 2025
Peshawar
Rehman Khan Sherwani
(Company Secretary)
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NOTES:

1. Closure of Share Transfer Books

The share transfer books of the company will remain closed and no transfer of shares will
be accepted for registration from October 22, 2025 to October 28, 2025 (both days
inclusive). Transfers received in order at the Share Registrars’ office by the close of
business on October 21, 2025 will be treated in time for the purpose of attending the AGM
and payment of final cash dividend, if approved by the Shareholders.

2. Participation in the Annual General Meeting

A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint another person
as his / her proxy to attend and vote. Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the
Registered Office of the Company duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours before
the meeting.

3. CDC Account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines:
a. For attending the meeting

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person
whose securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per
regulations, shall authenticate his / her identity by showing his / her original National
Identity Card (NIC) or original passport at the time of attending the meeting.

In the case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney
with specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided
earlier) at the time of the meeting.

b. For appointing proxies

I. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the
person whose securities are in group account and their registration details are
uploaded as per regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above
requirement.

II. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses
and CNIC number shall be mentioned on the form.

1. Attested copies for CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and of the
proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

Iv. The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the
time of the meeting.

V. In the case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of
attorney with specimen signature of the person nominated to represent and
vote on behalf of the corporate entity shall be submitted (unless it has been
provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company. Blank proxy forms
are available on the Company’s website www.forte.com.pk
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4. Video Conference Facility
In accordance with Section 132(2) of the Companies Act, 2017 if the Company receives
consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing in a
geographical location to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 7 days
prior to the date of Annual General Meeting, the Company will arrange video conference
facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city. To avail this facility
please submit such request to the Company Secretary of the Company on given address:

rehman.khan@forte.com.pk for their appointment and proxy’s verification by or before
4:30 p.m. on October 27, 2025.

Name of CNIC No. Folio No. / Cell Number Email address
Shareholder CDC No.

Video conference link details and login credentials will be shared with those shareholders
whose registered emails containing all the particulars are received on or before October 27,
2025 by 4:30 p.m. Shareholders can also provide their comments and questions for the
agenda items of the AGM on rehman.khan@forte.com.pk or WhatsApp or SMS on Cell
Number. 0315-5601819 by October 27, 2025 by 4:30 p.m. Shareholders are required to
mention their full name, CNIC number and Folio/CDS # for this purpose.

5. Changes in Members Addresses
The Shareholders are requested to promptly notify change in their address, if any, to the
Company’s Share Registrar.

6. Transmission of Audited Financial Statements Through Email

SECP vide S.R.O 389(1)/2023 dated 21 March 2023 and shareholders in their Annual
General Meeting held on 28 October 2023 have authorized the Company to circulate annual
audited financial statements through QR enabled code and weblink instead of circulating
the same through CD/DVD/USB. The Annual Audited Financial Statements along with the
reports and Notice of AGM are being sent to members who have provided their email
addresses. Physical copy of the Annual Report will be provided to the members on demand.

7. Availability of Financial Statements and Reports on Website
The audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025 have
been made available on the Company’s website www.forte.com.pk, in addition to annual
and quarterly financial statements for the prior years which can be accessed/downloaded
from the following link and QR code.

https://forte.com.pk/reports
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8.

10.

Mandatory Registration Detail of Physical Shareholders

According to section 119 of the Companies Act, 2017 and regulation 47 of the Companies
Regulations, 2024, all physical shareholders are advised to provide their mandatory
information such as CNIC numbers, address, email, contact mobile/telephone number,

international bank account number (IBAN), etc. to our share registrar at their below address
immediately to avoid non-compliance of law or any inconvenience in future.

CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S., Main
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi- 74400 Tel: +92 21 111 111 500 Fax: + 92 21 34326053
Website: www.cdcsrsl.com Email: info@cdcsrsl.com

Conversion of Physical Shares into CDC Account

As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, all listed companies are required to replace
shares issued by them in physical form to book-entry form. Accordingly, all shareholders
of the Company having physical shares are requested to convert their shares into book-
entry form at the earliest with the CDC. The shareholders may contact the Company or
Shares Registrar for the conversion of physical shares into book-entry form.

E-voting & Postal Ballot

The members are hereby notified that pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations,
2018 amended through Notification vide SRO 2192(1)/2022 dated December 05, 2022
issued by the SECP. The SECP has directed all listed companies to provide the right to vote
through electronic voting facility and voting by post to the members on all businesses
classified as special business.

Accordingly, members of the Company will be allowed to exercise their right to vote
through e-voting facility or voting by post in the forthcoming AGM to be held on Monday,
October 28, 2025 at 9:30 A.M. in accordance with the conditions mentioned in the aforesaid
regulations. The Company shall provide its members with the following options for voting:

1. E-voting Procedure

a.  Details of the e-voting facility will be shared through an e-mail with those members
of the Company who have their valid CNIC numbers, cell numbers, and e-mail
addresses available in the register of members of the Company within due course.

b. The web address, login details, will be communicated to members via email.

c. Identity of the members intending to cast vote through e-Voting shall be
authenticated through electronic signature or authentication for login.

d. E-Voting lines will start from October 25, 2025, 09:00 a.m. and shall close on
October 27, 2025 at 5:00 p.m. Members can cast their votes any time in this period.
Once the vote is cast by a member, he / she shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently.

ii.  Postal Ballot
For Voting through Postal Ballot Members may exercise their right to vote as per
provisions of the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018. Further details in this

regard will be communicated to the shareholders within legal time frame as
stipulated under the said Regulations, if required.
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11.

12.

13.

The members shall ensure that duly filled and signed ballot paper along with copy of
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) should reach the Chairman of the
meeting through post on the Company>s Registered 29-Industrial Estate Jamrud
Road, Peshawar, or email at rehman.khan@forte.com.pk one working day before
the AGM i.e. on October 25, 2025, during working hours. The signature on the ballot
paper shall match with the signature on CNIC. Ballot paper for voting through post
is attached herewith.

Unclaimed Dividends and Shares Certificates

The Company has previously discharged its responsibility under Section 244 of the
Companies Act, 2017 whereby the company approached the shareholders to claim their
unclaimed dividends and undelivered shares certificates in accordance with the law.
Shareholders, whose dividends and share certificates are still unclaimed/undelivered, are
hereby once again requested to approach the company and claim outstanding dividend
amounts and/ or undelivered shares certificates.

Virtual Participation in the AGM

Members interested to participate in the AGM proceedings via video link are required to
provide following details at rehman.khan@forte.com.pk:

Name of CNIC No. Folio No./CDC No. of Contact Email
Shareholder Account No. Shares No. Address

Video Link to join the AGM will be shared before one day of AGM with only those
Members whose emails, containing all the required particulars, are received at the above
email address at 4:00 p.m on October 27, 2025. Login facility shall remain open till
conclusion of the meeting on October 28, 2025.

Prohibition on grant of gifts to Shareholders

The SECP through its Circular 2 of 2018, dated 9th February 2018 and S.R.0.452(1)/2025
dated 17th March 2025 has strictly prohibited companies from providing gifts or incentives,
in lieu of gifts (tokens/ coupons/lunches/ takeaway/ packages) in any form or manner, to

shareholders at or in connection with general meetings. Under Section 185 of the Act, any

violation of this directive is considered an offense, and companies failing to comply may
face penalties.
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STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACT UNDER SECTION 134 (3) OF THE
COMPANIES ACT 2017 READ WITH SRO 423/(i)/2018. DATED APRIL 3, 2018
IN CONNECTION WITH SPECIAL RESOLUTION

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business given in Agenda
Item No. 2 of the Notice to be transacted at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to
be held on Tuesday, October 28, 2025 at 09:00 A.M.

ANNEXURE - A

APPROVAL OF TRANSACTIONS FROM/TO WITH ASSOCIATED COMPANIES &
UNDERTAKING IN COMPLIANCE OF SECTION 207, 208 & 199 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2017

The Company’s shareholders accorded prior approval for the transactions in last AGM with
its related parties for the year ended 30th June 2025 which were on an arm’s length basis as
per the approved policy with respect to ‘transactions with related parties” which were in the
normal course of business. Many Directors may be deemed to be treated as interested in
transactions with related parties due to their common directorships, shareholders further
approval/ ratification is required for all transactions with the related parties as required u/s 207
and / or 208 and / or 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, for the year ended 30th June 2025.

Further, the Company may carry out further transactions with its related parties during the year
ending 30th June 2025 on an arm’s length basis as per the approved policy with respect to
‘transactions with related parties’ in the normal course of business. Many Directors may be
deemed to be treated as interested in transactions with related parties due to their common
directorships and/or shareholding. In order to promote good corporate governance and
transparent business practices, the shareholders approve and desire to authorize the Board of
Directors to approve transactions with the related parties as required u/s 207 and / or 208 and
/ or 199 of the Companies Act, 2017, for the year ending 30th June 2026, which transactions
shall be deemed to be approved by the Shareholders and will be ratified by the members in the
next AGM.

The Directors, Sponsors, majority shareholders and their relatives are not interested, directly
or indirectly, in the above business except to the extent of shares that are held by them in the
Company.

Information under Regulation 3 of The Companies’ (Investment in Associated
Companies or Associated Undertakings) Regulations, 2017

REF | REQUIREMENT INFORMATION
NO.
a) Disclosure for all type of investments,
(A) Regarding associated company or associated undertaking;
I Name of the associated company or associated | KHALID & KHALID
undertaking HOLDINGS (Pvt) LTD
II | Basis of Relationship An associated undertaking due to
common directorship.
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IIT | Earnings/ (Loss) per share for the last three Year Earning/
years (Loss) per
Share Rs.
2025 11..33
2024 14.50
2023 32.16
IV | Break-up value per share PKR . 36.64
V | Financial position, including main item of | Audited financial statements for
statement financial position and profit & loss | the year ended June 30, 2025
account on the basis of latest financial | showed.
statements
Balance Sheet: Rs. in
‘000°
Assets
Non-Current Assets 351,440
Current Assets 403,084
Total Assets 754,525
Liabilities
Long Term 0
Short Term 36,725
Total Liabilities 36,725
Profit & loss:
Sales 726,695
Gross Profit 211,661
Gross Profit Ratio 29.13%
Loss after Tax 113,306
Ratio 15.59%
PPS 11.33
VI | In case of investment in relation to a project of | Not Applicable
associated company or associated undertaking
that has not commenced operation, following
further information namely
1. Description of the project and its | Not Applicable
history since conceptualization
ii. Starting date and expected date of | Not Applicable
completion of work
ii. Time by which such project shall | Not Applicable
become commercially operational
iv. Expected time by which the project | Not Applicable
shall start paying return on
investment.
V. Funds invested or to be invested by | Not Applicable
the promoters, sponsors associated
company or associated undertaking
distinguishing between cash and
non-cash amounts.

(B) General Disclosures: -

(@)

Maximum amount of investment to be made

Previously sanctioned limit of

PKR.200

million is

being

extended to PKR 800 million.
Above facilities will be in the
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nature of running finance for a
period of three years

(ii) | Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to the | To support the functionality,
investing company and its members from such | operations and growth of the
investment and period investment associate.

(ii1)) | Sources of funds to be utilized for investment | From Company's own available
and where the investment is intended to be | liquidity, credit lines and
made using borrowed fund: borrowings  from  associated

companies and undertakings
I Justification  for  investment | Not Applicable
through borrowings
II Detail of collateral, guarantees | Not Applicable
provided and assets pledge for
obtaining such funds
Jlll Cost of benefit analysis Not Applicable

(iv) | Salient features of all agreements entered or to | Period: Three Years
be entered with its associated company or | Rate: One-year KIBOR+3.25%
associated undertaking with regards to
proposed investment

(v) | Direct or indirect interest of directors, | Directors of the Company have no
sponsors, majority shareholders and their | interest in the investee Company
relatives, if any, in the associated company or | except in their capacity as
associated undertaking or the transaction under | Sponsor/ Director / Shareholder
consideration of Investee Company.

(vi) | In case any investment in associated company | A loan of Rs. 200 million had

or associated undertaking has already been
made, the performance review of such
investment including complete information/
justification for any impairment or write offs.

already been granted for the
period July-2023 to June-2025.

The said associated company is
engaged in the assembly of high-
end passenger buses in Pakistan
in collaboration with reputable
international manufacturers. The
Board has carried out a detailed
review of the financial position,
business progress, and future
prospects of the associated
company. Based on the
information  available  and
management’s assessment, the
operations are  progressing
satisfactorily, with  positive
indicators of future profitability
and cash flow generation.
Accordingly, the Board is of the
view that there is no indication
of impairment in respect of the
aforesaid loan, nor is any write-
off considered necessary at this
stage.
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(A) Additional disclosure regarding investment in the form of working capital
loan: -
(i) | Category wise amount of investment. PKR 800 million as loan/ advance
(i1) | average borrowing cost of the investing | Average borrowing cost of the
company, the Karachi inter Bank Offered Rate | investing Company is 1-year
(KIBOR) for relevant period, rate of return for | Kibor+2%.
Shariah complaint products and rate of return
unfunded facilities, as the case may be, for the
relevant period.
(iii)) | Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or | Higher than the Company’s'
commission etc. to be charged prevalent average borrowing cost.
(iv) | Particulars of collateral security to be obtained | No Security to be obtained
against loan to the borrowing company or
undertaking, if any
(v) | If the investment carries conversion feature | Not Applicable
1.e., it is convertible into securities, this fact
along with complete detail including
conversion formula, circumstances in which
the conversion may take place and the time
when the conversion may be exercisable
(vi) | Repayment schedule and term and conditions | Above facilities will be in the
of loans or advances to be given to associated | nature of running finance for a
company or associated undertaking period of three year. However,
transaction with investing
Company will be approved and
ratified in annual general meeting
of the Company

ANNEXURE - B

APPROVAL OF WITHDRAWAL OF LAND SALE AGREEMENT AND RELATED
MATTERS

This statement sets out the material facts relating to the proposed resolution regarding the
withdrawal of the land sales agreement dated January 08, 2021 with a related party, for
consideration and approval of the members in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

1. Background:

The Company had entered into a land sale agreement on January 08, 2021with a
counterparty for purchase of 1031 kanal of land on “AS Is” basis, situated at Massan
Daud ,Khail , Mianwali for a total consideration of Rs. 1.13 billion, against which an
advance of Rs. 750.84 million was paid. The counterparty is the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company,

Reason for Withdrawal:

In line with the Board’s strategic review and assessment of prevailing market
conditions, it was determined that the sector has reached a level of saturation where a
new plant expansion would not yield the desired returns. Accordingly, the Board
decided not to pursue the land acquisition and to withdraw the agreement with the
counter party.
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Settlement Arrangement:

The counterparty has agreed to refund Rs. 200 million by May 2026, while the further
payment if any, will be paid after June 30, 2026 with mutual agreement between the
parties under negotiation, as the counterparty has expressed concerns regarding
compensation for withdrawal of the Agreement by the Company. The Board has
authorized management to continue negotiations with the counterparty to achieve an
amicable resolution.

Interest of Directors and Majority Shareholders:
The Directors, Sponsors, majority shareholders and their relatives are not interested,

directly or indirectly, in the above business except to the extent of shares that are held by
them in the Company.
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Frontier Ceramics Limited

KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA - FOR LAST 6 YEARS

-------------------- (Rupees in Thousands) ------------------—-
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Sales - Net 4,390,409 3,419,350 4,115,403 3,758,162 2,828,952 1,115,224
Gross Profit/(Loss) 400,885 72,587 103,345 241,377 296,241 112,722
Expenses 114,329 171,514 234,868 104,404 91,222 115,623
Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation 286,556 (98,927) (131,523) 136,973 205,019 (2,901)
Profit/(Loss) After Taxation 147,496 (109,913) 153,472 38,504 160,705 17,669
Dividend % - - - - - -
4.05 1.02 Restated Restated
Earning/(Loss) Per Share (Rs.) 3.89 (2.90) (4.05) ( 4 2)4 ( 0 4)7
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CHAIRPERSON’S REVIEW REPORT:
Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, I present the performance of the Company for the year ended June 30,
2025.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW:

The construction sector—an essential driver of demand for our products—remained subdued during the year,
impacted by restrained public sector development spending and cautious private investment. This slowdown
directly affected the tiles and ceramics industry, while rising gas and electricity tariffs further escalated
production costs for an already energy-intensive sector, placing additional pressure on profitability.

Against this backdrop, your company managed to perform and remained steadfast in its commitment to
innovation, operational efficiency, and strict financial discipline.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW:

In the challenging circumstances, your company sustained its expected results for the year. However,
management has remained proactive in reducing the impact of the external pressures. Key measures
undertaken included:

e Improvement in product mix by focusing on higher-value and design-oriented offerings,

e Optimization of energy consumption through adoption of a more beneficial energy mix and efficiency
1nitiatives,

e Cost reduction and strict working capital management to strengthen liquidity,

e Enhancement of product quality to improve competitiveness.

e Increase in production capacity utilization

PERFORMANCE SCORECARD

During the year, the Company achieved a revenue increase of 28.40% as compared to previous year, profit
after tax Rs 147.49M as compared to after tax loss of Rs 109.91M of previous year , reflecting the successful
optimization of production capacity and stronger operational efficiency. At the same time, our unwavering
commitment to excellence in customer satisfaction enabled us to reinforce customer loyalty, maintain a
competitive edge, and expand our market share, even in the face of a challenging economic environment.

BOARD PERFORMANCE AND ROLE IN ACHIEVING COMPANY'S
OBJECTIVES

In compliance with the provisions of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations,
2019, the Board has established a formal and effective mechanism to conduct an annual evaluation of its own
performance, as well as that of its Members and Sub-Committees. The approval and successful
implementation of this evaluation mechanism further demonstrates the Board's commitment to adhering to
corporate governance standards.
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During the year, the Board demonstrated effective leadership and sound decision-making, guiding the
Company through challenges and capitalizing on opportunities. By fostering transparency, accountability,
and innovation, it strengthened stakeholder confidence and enabled the management team to work cohesively
towards shared goals. Prudent oversight and risk management remained central to ensuring sustainable
growth and long-term success.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

As Pakistan moves toward greater stability and renewed global support, we see fresh opportunities for growth
and investment. With strong foundations and a clear strategy, your Company is ready to seize these
opportunities and create lasting value for all stakeholders.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

I extend my sincere appreciation to the members of the Board, our investors, employees, and values customers
for the continued trust and support.

g5

Mrs. Shabina Anjum
Chairperson
Dated: October 07, 2025
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DIRECTORS REPORT:

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their report along with the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended June 30, 2025.

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT:

During the year, the overall economic environment remained challenging, with the construction sector
being particularly affected. Limited availability of project financing, rising costs of key construction
materials, and subdued consumer purchasing power continued to constrain activity in the sector.
Consequently, a number of projects faced delays or cancellations, leading to a notable slowdown in both
housing and commercial construction activities.

Besides these challenges, the Company's performance remained, Alhamdulillah, satisfactory with revenue
increased by 28.40% as compared to previous year by utilizing the production capacity of the Plant more
efficiently during the year. The Company recorded a Profit before tax of Rs. 286.56 million as compared
to loss before tax Rs 98.93 million. Earnings per share increased to Rs 3.89 as compared to loss per share
Rs (2.90) previous year.

Summary of financial performance is given below:

2025 2024

(Rupees in Millions)

Turnover — net 4,390.41 3,419.35
Gross profit 400.89 72.61
Operating Profit 309.80 6.18
Finance cost 29.10 143.18
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 286.56 (98.93)
Profit/(Loss) after taxation 147.49 (109.91)
Earnings/(Loss) per share (Rs.) 3.89 (2.90)

LIQUIDITY AND CASH FLOW MANAGEMENT:

The Company primarily manages its capital expenditure requirements and short-term working capital
requirements from its internally generated cash-flows and associated companies. The Company believes
that it is maintaining an optimal capital structure. Company deals on cash basis and discourages the credit
which ease the company in managing its cash flows.

COMMERCIAL STRATEGY:
The Company continued its focus on strengthening the FORTE brand. To further improve brand visibility

and reinforce its premium image. We remain committed to sustained efforts aimed at maintaining Company
position as a leading premium brand in the industry.
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BUSINESS RISKS AND CHALLENGES:

Following are the major risks, which may affect our business operations:
¢ Fluctuation / interruption in gas supply due to curtailment, gas reservedepletion
e Revision in gas allocation policy and increased gas tariff exerting pressures on input cost
e Rising coal prices
e Problems in establishing LCs affecting the production cycle
e High inflation resulting in sluggish secondary sales
e Devaluation of rupee.
e Freight cost upsurge due to supply chain disruption, diesel prices.
e Irrational tax burden on compliant companies.

CORPORATE AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Over the years, the Company has committed to contributing towards the welfare of society through various
CSR initiatives, with a particular focus on healthcare, education, and community development. Guided by
its CSR policy, the Company continues to evaluate opportunities where its contributions can create
remained meaningful impact. During the year under review, the Board revisited the CSR framework to
align future initiatives more closely with long-term community needs and the Company’s strategic
objectives. This realignment will enable the Company to channel its resources more effectively in the
coming years.

HEALTH & SAFETY:

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining a safe, secure, and healthy work environment for all its
employees. In line with core safety principles, we strive to provide a workplace where individuals can
perform their duties with confidence and assurance. To reinforce this commitment, a dedicated Health &
Safety Division has been established, tasked with proactively minimizing workplace risks, ensuring
adherence to recognized best practices, and safeguarding the overall well-being of our workforce.

ENVIRONMENT:

The Company recognizes its responsibility to protect and preserve the environment for future generations.
In line with this commitment, we have undertaken initiatives aimed at minimizing and recycling waste,
while progressively adopting green technologies to improve our energy mix and overall environmental
performance

ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL CONTROLS:

The Company has in place a robust system of internal controls to ensure orderly operations, safeguard
assets, and maintain accurate financial records. The Board, directly and through its committees, regularly
reviews the adequacy of these controls, financial performance, and budgetary variances with necessary
actions. To strengthen oversight, a suitably qualified Head of Internal Audit has been appointed in
compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

AUDITORS REAPPOINTMENT:

The present auditor’s M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants, are due to retire in the fourth
coming annual general meeting of the company and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
appointment. The Board has recommended the re-appointment of the retiring auditors for the year ending
30 June 2026, for approval of the shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The Company Management is fully cognizant of its responsibility as recognized by the Companies Act,
2017 provisions and Code of Corporate Governance issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan (SECP). The following comments are acknowledgement of Board's commitment to high standards
of Corporate Governance and continuous improvement:

L.

10.

The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

Proper books of account have been maintained by the Company;

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of these financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed
in preparation of these financial statements;

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored. The process of monitoring internal controls will continue with the objective to further
strengthen the controls and improve the system;

There are no significant doubts upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern;

A summary of key operating and financial data of the Company of the last six years is available in
the annual report.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance, as detailed
in the Regulations of Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange.

The Company is in process of re-registering provident fund trust for all permanent employees. The
provident fund payable by the Company as at June 30, 2025 was Rs. 113.92 million (2024: Rs.
84.09 million) and will be transferred to the trust once registration process is completed.

There are no outstanding statutory payments due on account of taxes, levies and charges except as
those disclosed in these financial statements.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS & ITS COMMITTEES:
THE BOARD:

The Board comprises of two independent Directors (including one female director), three non-executive
Directors and two executive Director.

During the year, four meetings of Board of Directors (BOD) were held. All the meetings were held in
Pakistan. The attendance and the composition of the Board of Directors are as follows:
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No. of

Name of Director Designation meetings

attended
Mrs. Shabina Anjum Chairpersoq & 4

Independent Director
Mr. Nadeem Khalid Chief Executive 4
Mr. Omer Khalid Non-Executive 4
Mr. Javid Khalid Non-Executive 4
Mr. Zia Khalid Executive Director 4
Ms. Numrah Khalid Executive Director 4
Mr. Muhammad Riaz Khan Independent 4
Mrs. Shazia Khalid Non-Executive 2
Mr. M Nehmatullah Toor Non-Executive 2
Director

BOARD AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE:

The Board Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities, primarily in
reviewing and reporting financial and non-financial information to share-holders, systems of internal
control and risk management and the audit process. It has the autonomy to call for information from
management and to consult directly with the external auditors or advisors as considered appropriate. The
Chief Financial Officer regularly attends the Board Audit Committee meetings by invitation to present the
accounts. After each meeting, the Chairperson of the Committee reports to the Board. The Committee
comprises of two non-executive director and one independent director.

During the year, four meetings of Audit Committee were held. The attendance and the composition of the
Board of Directors are as follows:

No. of
Name of Director Designation meetings
Mr. Muhammad Riaz Khan Chairman/ Independent Director 4
Mr. Omer Khalid Non-Executive Director 4
Mr. Javid Khalid Non-Executive Director 4

HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee provides strategic guidance to the management on
human resource, review the annual performance evaluations, personnel policies, and compensation &
benefits for the associates.

For the year under review, one meeting of the HR&R Committee was held to discuss & approve the matters
falling under the terms of reference of the Committee. The attendance of the HR&R Committee members
was as follows:

Page 22



Name of Director Designation

Ms. Numrah Khalid Executive Director
Mr. Javid Khalid Non-Executive Director
DIVIDEND:

The Board of Directors has not recommended any dividend for the financial year ended June 30, 2025 due
to expected payments towards current liabilities.
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING:

Statements showing the pattern of shareholding as at June 30, 2025 required under Section 227 (2) (f) of
the Companies Act, 2017 and the Code of Corporate Governance, is annexed to this report.

The Directors, CFO, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses or minor children did
not carry out any trade in the shares of the Company during the year except CEO of the Company.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The transactions between the related parties were carried out on the basis of arm's length prices. The
Company has fully complied with the best practices on transfer pricing as contained Act and Code. The
details of all related party transactions were placed before the Audit Committee and upon its
recommendation the same were approved by the Board of Directors.

GENDER PAY GAP:

Your company is committed to fostering an inclusive and equitable workplace where all employees are
valued and empowered to succeed. We are proud to be an equal opportunity employer, dedicated to ensuring
that employment decisions including recruitment, hiring, training, promotion, and compensation are made
based on merit and qualifications without regard to race, color, religion, gender, age, disability, or any other
characteristic protected by law.

We believe that diversity drives innovation and enhances our organizational performance. To this end, we
continuously strive to create a work environment where all employees have equal opportunities to thrive
and contribute to our collective success.

Our analysis for this period female employees earns 8.38% more than their male counterparts, based on the
mean hourly pay. The median pay gap stands at 22.12%, with female employees earning more than their
male peers at the midpoint of the pay distribution. These figures serve as a benchmark for continued
progress and underline the importance of addressing systemic pay disparities.

We are encouraged by these figures, which reflect positively on our commitment to gender equity.
Nonetheless, we understand that achieving pay equity is an ongoing endeavor.

Auditors’ Qualification and Management’s Response

The auditors have expressed qualifications in their report on the following two matters:
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1. Classification of Advance against Land Sale Agreement

Subsequent to the year end, the Board of Directors, in its meeting held on October 7, 2025, resolved
to discontinue the Company’s previously planned land acquisition for a new business unit and to
withdraw from the Land Sale Agreement dated January 8, 2021, executed with the Chief Executive
Officer (Counter Party) for a total consideration of Rs. 1.13 billion. It was mutually agreed that
out of the total advance paid as at June 30, 2025 amounting to Rs. 750.84 million, Rs. 200 million
would be refunded to the Company by May, 2026, while the balance would be settled after June
30, 2026 upon mutual agreement, as the Chief Executive Officer has sought compensation for the
withdrawal. The auditors have qualified that the Company has classified Rs 200 million under
current assets which constitute the departure from the requirement of IFRS as the approval of the
withdrawal of from the land Sale Agreement is a non —adjusting subsequent event.

Management’s View:

The management believes that the classification of Rs. 200 million as a current asset is consistent
with the presentation principles of I4S I — Presentation of Financial Statements, as the recovery
is contractually scheduled within the next operating cycle and represents a realizable short-term
asset. The disclosure in Note 10.2 adequately explains the nature of the event.

2. Uncertainty Relating to Negotiations and Compensation

The auditors have further qualified their report on the grounds that the Chief Executive Officer
(the counterparty) has sought compensation for the withdrawal and that the matter remains subject
to further negotiation. Consequently, the auditors qualified that company has not carried out an
impairment assessment of the recovery of the remaining advance amount against purchase of land
amounting to Rs 550.836 .In the absence of such assessment, they are unable to determine the
amount of the adjustment that may be required in the carrying amount of the remaining advance
and its impact in the statement of profit or loss for the year.

Management’s View:

In management’s considered view, the matter represents a non-adjusting subsequent event, the
financial impact of which cannot presently be determined. Accordingly, adjustment, if any,
required, shall be recognized in the subsequent financial period prospectively in accordance with
IAS 10 (Events after the reporting period) and IAS 37 (Provisions, Contingent liability and
Contingent Assets). Management is of the view that, even if an impairment assessment had been
carried out as of October 07,2025, the date for authorizing the issue of financial statement , any
resulting impact would pertain to subsequent financial periods, since the event constitutes a non-
adjusting subsequent event under IAS 10.

Further Disclosure:
For transparency and in the spirit of good corporate governance, this matter has been placed before

the shareholders as a special business item in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting for their
consideration and approval.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have taken place
between the end of the financial year and the date of the Report, except as disclosed in the financial
statements.

BUSINESS CONTINUITY PLANS:

In the dynamic business landscape of Pakistan, robust business continuity planning has emerged as a critical
facet for companies seeking to navigate through various challenges and uncertainties. A well-structured
business continuity plan is designed to ensure the organization's resilience in the face of disruptions such
as natural disasters, economic fluctuations, and unforeseen events.

As an integral component of the Business Continuity Plan, remote disaster recovery sites have been
effectively established to uphold backup server and data integrity should our primary server encounter any
complications.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND ITS COMMITTEES:

In accordance with the mandates of the Code of Corporate Governance and the Companies Act of 2017,
the Company's Board conducts a yearly comprehensive self-evaluation of its collective performance along
with that of its committees. This evaluation process is aimed at assessing the Board's overall performance
and efficacy, aligning it with the Company's set objectives.

The evaluation concentrates on key areas such as:
e Alignment of corporate goals and objectives with the vision and mission of the Company
e Strategy formulation for sustainable operation
e Board's independence and
e Evaluation of Board's Committees performance in relation to discharging their responsibilities set
out in respective terms of reference.

Each year, an evaluation questionnaire is prepared in accordance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019, and distributed to Directors for performance assessment. These
evaluations are subsequently analyzed to pinpoint areas necessitating enhancement and to bring to light any
divergent viewpoints. The overall performance and efficacy of the Board and its committees has been
appraised as 'Satisfactory'.

REVIEW OF CEO'S PERFORMANCE:

The CEO's performance is subject to a formal appraisal using an evaluation system that encompasses
various aspects. This includes assessing the business performance, achievement of objectives related to
profitability, organizational development, succession planning and overall corporate success.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION:

In terms of requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the
Code), the Company has formulated a policy which deals with the remuneration of the Directors. The
system of remuneration for Directors is designed to enhance their motivation for improved business
performance, both over the short term and medium to long term with sustained growth of corporate value.
The Executive Director is paid monthly remuneration and benefits as approved by the Directors, whereas
the Company does not pay remuneration to Non-executive Directors, except for meeting fee. For
information on remuneration and fee of Directors & CEOQ, please refer to notes to the Financial Statements.
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OUTLOOK AND FUTURE PROSPECTS:

Looking ahead, we remain cautiously optimistic about the future. We will continue to prioritize product
innovation, customer satisfaction, and operational excellence by increasing the production capacity more
efficiently. The Company's unwavering dedication to excellence and customer satisfaction has remained
steadfast. Even in these challenging times, our customers' unwavering trust continues to serve as a driving
force.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
The Board of Directors of our Company are grateful to our shareholders and customers for their continued
patronage and trust which has made FRCL a leading brand in the industry. We wish to extend our heartfelt

gratitude and recognition to entire FRCL team, including our staff, our valued bankers, vendors for their
consistent support and confidence in our Company.

On behalf of the Board

. <

Nadeem Khalid Numrah Khalid
Chief Executive Officer Director

Date: October 7,2025
Peshawar

Page 26



o b
é}{}d/ J /..(/’15

G s S B 5 A L2 Wb S L L dind s $202502305 AL 5
UG

A 28 Q2 Sl sssar S B Lt 12300 4 b 6 o 32 R PO i £
2§ S B Ui e LSS S NS Sa e S S Nt
sl st udnus S 3F 3 s e
:ﬁfé;_nifdh»“wnag/’/‘/ug)/ogww;%tfygum;éJL«;‘vﬁ':Lﬁm/“/,gf;/%d/&{:uwLu%uu
;wgdv&f-,@yﬂ)’uéc»@uuf286.5644&?2.5{&@:_%%5u¢»a228.4ouf&ﬂu:4m£dv

=

e 1389480 1 o L 12,900 P B & 2l VS sl 98,93

e WUt 58650 KO

2025 2024
%W:L %W:L o
4390.41 3,419.35 el
400.89 72.59 Bt
309.82 6.18 () BT
29.10 143.18 SR
286.56 (98.93) () o dt e JE
147.49 (109.91) () el S
3.89 (2.90) (o) 3 QuT

:rlﬁ'n(ﬁﬂ/ﬂl& 4o
/:l}r’ﬂL!;Lm%/vu}’&ull%l/@&/)ﬁd/&.};f.ﬁ//)&,&Jnﬁnlg&;;/d/al'p!/"'lélgl./'%,l/?u}’d)‘%&{
i e 3 Jﬁ’/g&%o(ﬁ]&{ el LS Z sl g AL S ‘LJ?’E/&{ =g b e U 3l
_f_éﬁ%&vfu:(w}lLﬁﬂ'%'/J{£§_J/$éJﬂiJ

Page 27



Jf_«,f[},l?
et i Lo ser AT Iy SUtsld_t iy 7. /,Q'Jfl/,_f//d/lgg;&,'/,:c’;&b}fb:’/ %1 FORTEL ¥
Pl LB ST L LE I By S b st
LA sl el BB

(2 S 2 TS s K e ezt PP n it

kot S S e oSS S L o

e DSl g g SUi Ut 2 U B s W P L

L Pl E S

Y205 /“L:»L»dmt&mfuuﬁry"iuw-

PNV N L ey T

BT

St e 2 $usE Sz P Ut B b

s S E L bl S

YD) 4
»:x;aﬁJz_}b»aj.u'éauj!CSRJﬁ?cﬁ’v&e?u“//’J}Jﬁrfm:ﬁw(dwmﬁu{d&{‘uwéuivf
/(’A”r::/:"(;‘ugd’fl;‘d/u’lQQZLL(?(/U/A?C:JD'//L?{gi}”él&?“/ru:JWJd/‘/(g.ECSRG;LLL(f/?”LLAG,.‘}U;J”LL
e ol A Lt e A L el 2 S Gad S S S igem & Jintlo it GE
6 L0t B35 id Flose M- L T 2ok - §38 P LSt JeSRL LE S BT
Sew

O 1 O

S Lodr Foota & sad LE ) AL Kok s i Lot
A o Lo sz}qﬁfrfw_u:;;;rt{uﬂ)‘%ta’vidg;gﬂm;@w}'qui/f/ﬁ./ﬂ},@
Solantel e GRS S i S U o s i LS Joid el 3 & RSk P e WU S s F o e
e VL bGP ot U § o S F 6

Page 28



)
J;fﬂlfdjl‘%fgﬂfﬁflbfﬁrfu’l_%&/(:w/d/l;,u’&.lJJ@A!W&&Q?L% LM S
it LB L SIS (T B s i GGy G d Lot it §o S dua
rerbe§ U P
sl il 4308 G B b L] KJ;}@,M“ALim/"/,,@@/@ytum,u:J@Ju?t%fi/jk'g&{
L‘%;qﬁ[&'/ﬁ_9guf@K.:A/é’"ég,,ﬁjvéguﬁﬁdﬂ/m:f;/%&yt.:ﬂ,}(w;fwgféu'éuyf:@;'
e WU TS 10T daumin L1 S U §2019524E (7 oy KT
b
s s st d1sd_sert st B ;-uuvdué.v’f 20 u’{‘f“‘ '5&5}3% BDO Ebrahim & Co.& 231n 2
420250230 LS o in S Bir 2 otons T e WL L6 Folnds3i Ui
e ST P ot §o Tt L L
S LS ey KT8
e S PSSECPIUL T o g KT8 1 s §2017 26172 S e AL A Soge Sl it
(8 S LL;/“!{J)//)];A/.L:zﬁ&"Lu)/fb”{,/z/ggf?djeﬂ-‘&&@fdﬂg
S Uk e G il B L L UK L e o S e bl QWos e 25 L S 1
f‘aftfdtémf/)wb*d;«l:@wcd/d/ﬁ{2
zu;zu’f/?&’;wﬁmwﬁf”fiﬂ%u@tﬂfdwJ'y(u;:%gbﬁ%qt»uﬁd/gu@twyw.3
< {8 auts et Qe bt I e IFRS )b £ By QS 112 4
/ﬂ;}fdf{&fd/uh)’-‘@,m“Lﬁﬁ/&if&/mmLalﬁffu;%}/‘?gu,n‘Ly/;uﬁu‘lzjrw €y 0015
K o ALt LGS B b s
fﬁ;ujﬁgfuéféofﬂ/JﬁgJézd/lgéubLﬁﬁd/lgsg.6
el QY T ﬂéuyvﬂg&;‘vi&fﬂ
_%J:‘ﬂ"uﬁzyﬁé.,m!m}éi{{rJwub@[t;e“gmgj’@l;’td;LJ/¢u;’ekqﬂ£ux/f¢4/g/K8

Page 29



yz,%fﬁ WG 2L 20250230t S LS i w;ﬁ:éaz,l4“&£uf;uf"“' rw{g
Kb S P oml i nJF S e 201 (&30 84.09:2024) s 113,924

VSRR U Bty upa U 361y U Szl 22 -£ 10

Sl S Ul 2B 3Thy

A w5 S5 e BT LI A 50T s U4

I AT 8 Ao S Bl ity L(BODY A 8T meun L
:‘gJ’“ 3

NS -y ok® LA

4 4 g AT At

4 AT s Aot

4 AL I

4 s Ao g3tz

4 ek PR

4 y337-%1 Moo fn

4 AT e LPLE

2 s NS

2 AL TS

B LT

IR ST IR P H btk 30 St g S U 38 SF s oy
el e Us 20 el st S et e st G S LTt L o8 L s 2 Bssined S
St L T8 5L et S S T B e bl b Sp e $A20 5SS
ST Lot 528 b A B eSSy, REE ol L B Sree b S e Sty
e 32 S AT S o st L5 AT £

ISeS Uyl 147 (te Y

4 }{/’15}{25 ol Py g

Page 30



4 AL Mo sl L2

4 i B

:o‘"f J&;V/;IJ/W&LJI

Susspeus e LSt 3 13l s 1t e AL F QO 81 Fovtb st s

e G s LBl

i LGB B I gl Ll T L7 T P2 EE e O R&HRG L s 4
F oS oS L R&HR

047 rl:K }f/’ﬁ

Er %1 Ny ey

s b gl

X493

e S S LUl s 4202050230 238 UEIE # S taiins 2l s A A5 5T 80
s b L

el sl S L e 2 202502303 £ oL ¥ of eosd Kon(D@22775 L20172517
ULy
/thui‘u‘jé(j{uwé,ududéd{Luéatggyu{/‘Juu,uﬁj;uf/;«d}’/?&{mUyuu‘d}f/’l;‘
S =3

:q;uijé/gﬁh‘?

e SJF S Sus b At AL UFE S P12 5 I e §0R S8 e ol » LU j 3
SO AT e S o L& i w0 3 e S 3 b S
IR

:J & GENDER

Page 31



AL L8 o QoS3 U e pF gk Lislnf B S p6Sslml LI 6. -
et QAGAIAEL L S 50 LI b A S120e Bl n2TLnd SAEImsiau”
Sedb e 2Ly Seer? § poS ol b8 oD pSudbyminf S omtioknd S s f ooy
AT

B SIS St L6k a1 el §o SR St S e lF S bl
-und"lpéwubféirj,»uﬁdym &nd/w/,liﬂﬁfuﬁm(&uq

SP6F b QU578 38U L U s p it b 15 o F S b led Leur
oLl Lt Rt ot ol e Ul et Bl n L2 SusF S eE1$e 22,107
B S S et S S e SE LnF i 2 KLl

LS P F e Aol S5 ed S u@u,dm;Lu,u&}‘z:‘aayw_/uﬁ,,muwﬁ
B

S o s 5 287

—e YAFPIE =L uﬁbu/g/&;u/?mlujs@n'gjﬁﬁ

dkguﬁ'dﬁé;ﬁbﬂ&&;}g{dﬁ].l

Lu:mﬁ&f.%&'j{ & & YAt B (0357542025 45717 s A BT esl o1 L
U ee A6 sty e e b Limssp S uﬁzézozlwma’vé(&g F36) AT gl S v
U S 750 80140 F G 2025 0230 SUY 61 L b1 Lo el 13284 S
YN S PIT AN 2;4;45»0%1’2Lzozéuﬁsszgwériuj’@a,;/uit,%,/u%200/@’{ 20265 <
2§ S ko nS et 200eF Ludtinar L Le B i psl - b o d LSl AT
syt Sl Bz bl F LIS S s el L e p S s Eod o 660 e FSTFRS

-
lﬁﬂggﬂlﬁ'l

fx.cﬁ;%a@lb‘c;uﬂf’ﬁui@w(gtgéyh—lAS 1J.'.J'ZOO/,:/}’Li‘t"!uﬁ/-dkgud/a;ufcé'.dyng@l
Jl“flui10.2.:)-4".3/&«'/Vd/ﬁ?ldﬁ/fgdﬁ‘}@ugﬂ/;lﬁ;&?d/&ulLJ?V..@’JK!&’,lb‘ﬁ;},b»dug/

_Lat‘//wu;g/b’d/o{jd/)";

Page 32



Jgjfﬁjyc&)bu;lal/(ul

Sy P o Lu’mé_(&g/‘”%)ﬁéfigfngf9g)/l}J14//¢;g/&14;gu¢a’_)/‘asf
FEY 5SS i o L i Setid %:/550.836Lg3{ SYCC T b e gy
Lﬁl&uuﬁémg‘ﬂ,y,gzg,zw/L?;L/u:’"’Kﬁ“/Jwym,,:uﬁ.:,//u/'gm‘f?“u@}m_‘agéuf
e i Wil e n#d

:}ff}s?{,(w}u
dwxém_cﬁtggui?u:’jdwéKuﬁudtéu?:cab/fp’uJjn,/“;?oziv/éu{v,Lb»,wﬁ,j‘bf/gL{wu
B 13381 3T ST (i Lot L ok By DO BT 80 2B rtSn PO ezl )
QUYL 6017 F5107,2025 /1 S Ful S e K A B2l (“ S FANE e L (e
K1 LIAS 10291 £ b w3 e QUL o L1518 T 25 E S G b Sms et § Sl
EPSCHY O NI S 3Y

(kI

J2oonb TL Lot P #0f Ln b Loidn oS oo 16eF Lo io L * 0 ong K1 22
ce W P g LI

sl L uo)

QS L 1Lt Uk ST S5 Bl 2 o WS e n LB 6. Logn B LY
el

Lol 5 S U 357
,fgg&,‘yoﬂgr_bgwKé'réé“iuﬁf;/‘fouu»)ﬁrL%LLﬁ;z‘/?ML&L;'/’tg._,'é’i/wd'y;m
L(f'%;LL/J?,L/AE_&U:?J%&»,M“&ijﬂn/’-?Ldﬁdt/&ul{z‘alfé‘@,i/d/dz/f
SA L Tonr S U Lfiie s e S L] ooy S W L UtdIe st ifed_so el
WAL S ISP lond oo S

J?Luu:& 113407 602010000028 5% 407 U LB F5DASIS 12021605208 5 15 o657 St
ﬂfxfr‘abﬁ;’4@"3;:«fg/k@,{7?:uil'250@20266’-9&-0@1/.:L/(J:D?LML.,‘/”ﬂuﬁl’750-‘LJL’3u)l;,§,l

Page 33



L.:,l;u»ﬁl/“r}ulJLL&K/,:»%LM,_‘LQCWt{.:,b‘fﬁu"’f/?&;bwﬁw(;ﬁr“u(;},w/vrﬁwL&{Lw
b TS b AL i L0 S S 5 et I 1

L LT S P BTSNk g e i b A3 S s 5 St e
_‘at‘/diod//’mdbiég}{

1o A8 S S Ut S sl s 5T

7o # o U K S 1 A & Ut Gl el £ otor £ 2017251 S oy KST3S
_+t/u67ﬁjvéﬂwo;ﬁﬁLo’érct‘c@ojmK.:fn;tsu,udiﬁwﬁ&‘ux,uﬁ*{fméu‘ig_9
ZIRigynr s 4

d/-’w'wJML?»m.J',«,lq/g%jwiu“/muhi&{-

J:@JJ“J“ALU%/?T/%?

(ST Sy

_+gf:M/}'ui‘m/“:ala“fcLliLLLaz’/ug/u,;Juu'/’lgKJJLKJW’%{JM,-

S L oS8T Ko trol e ki 5 I £ 201955 A S 1 g KTV 2 i e
f}'f’ﬁﬁu’f&cﬂ%&nw;ﬂﬂwuﬁ&ﬁgt%ﬁiLé./du:tﬁu(u}wutuﬁwd/fgugffut_9b@y/ﬁﬁ
_‘L@m}'fu&}"'/;f“)smuJ;//K&rfJuy}@/mmm-‘awguav

:p'/'lgﬁﬁxr/l{&ldld

(S S MM I e I il e b e A i S 16 S KSCEO
e SEQ bt KA G S G0 s 6aoe G = Ee i

: oalo 5 A 1S

G b £ 20 S L e L el PEGN201952 A o ey KT3I 2
L LIRSk A St UInGad e B mBudE L35 Sbsesy K662 s L3 00
e Gl oL L e S A0 i oslo S A e WV P13 ZdA her Su
QWb ool Lo U WL st LIS 313 e G U o 3 P8 o £ 7
IS =

Page 34



s b S i asT

Scl¥ec ol alor= Sonititi s pd cokofmg ot s gy b b2 P AL Al s 27
u:&,f‘/w-@&wutg)’!¢Cu§/u£///wﬂ/,udﬁcf.t‘:wﬁjlJG{—L/@?/Z—@?/J/J%/JMUQ‘}"
IRt L L) 7 6 e o

)
LIt SFRCLL A Ut P L L5 I S LA hosti in 7 s B ST36E S
d;“ié;t:mtu,wd'y ui(j%r d/tfzKuuuﬁj)%/ﬁg}Ggmggmdﬁﬁ FRCLd/{,’(T_‘ag;lk?l/,u/’/ -

\

16320255175

Page 35



STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:

1.

2.

The Total number of directors are 7 as per the following:
a. Male: 05
b. Female: 02

The composition of the Board is as follows:

Category Name
Independent Director * Mrs. Shabina Anjum
(including one Female Director) | Muhammad Riaz Khan
Mr. Omer Khalid
ii. | Non-Executive Directors Mr. Javid Khalid
Mr. Muhammad Nehmatullah Toor
Mr. Zia Khalid
Ms. Numrah Khalid

iii. | Executive Directors

*In a board comprising of 7 members, one third works out to be 2.33 in which fraction is below half (i.e.0.5). The
fraction contained in such one-third is not rounded up to one. Company has qualified and experienced
independent directors on the board who perform and carry out their responsibility diligently.

The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director in more than seven listed companies,
including this company.

The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

The Board has developed a Vision/Mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies ofthe
company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their
date of approval or updating is maintained by the company.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and in her absence, by a director elected by
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with
respect to frequency, recording and circulating the minutes of meeting of the Board

2.,
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8. The Board has formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the
Act and these Regulations.

9. As at June 30. 2025, four members of the existing Board have completed the Director’s Training Program
(DTP). One director is exempt from this requirement by virtue of their qualifications and experience.

10. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit, including their
remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the
Regulations.

11.  Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements before approval
of theBoard.

12.  The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Sr# Category Names
Mr. Muhammad Riaz Khan (Chairman)
01 | Audit Committee Mr. Omer Khalid
Mr. Javid Khalid
HR and Remuneration Ms. Shabina Anju.m (Chairperson)
02 Committee Ms. Numrah Khalid
Mr. Javid Khalid

The Board effectively undertakes all the responsibilities designated under the Nomination Committee as
stipulated in the Regulations. It regularly monitors, assesses and implements any changes required in the Board
or any of the committees. The Board also actively monitors the requirements pertaining to size, structure and
composition and conducts timely review and implements necessary changes when required.

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:
a) Audit Committee: Four quarterly meetings were held during the year ended June 30,2025.
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: One meeting was held during the year ended June 30,2025.

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the
Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit
Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of
Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (Spouse, parent,
dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Head of Internal
Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company. ;
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17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have

confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. We confirm that all regulations requirements of 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the regulations have been complied

19. Explanation of non-compliance with the requirements, other than regulations 3,6,7, 8,27,32,33 and 36

are below.
z:)' Requirement Explanation of Non-Compliance R;?Jl:‘:itgn
1 Board of directors of the | Board have already formulated Significant | 10,16,17
Company shall ensure that | policies as required code of Corporate
significant policies have been | Governance of Listed Companies. These
formulated and approved policies also approved in BOD meeting held
on October 07, 2025
2 Role of board and its members | During the year, the Securities and Exchange 10A
to address Sustainability Risks | Commission of Pakistan issued certain
and Opportunities amendments (in relation to Regulation 10) of
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 through its
notification dated June 12, 2024. These
amendments will be applicable from 01 July,
2027 and will be performed in due course of
time.
3 Directors' Training The Company has seven directors whereof 19
one director is exempt from this requirement
It is encouraged that by June 30, | by virtue of his qualification and experience
2023 all the directors on their | and four out of the remaining five directors
Boards have acquired the | have obtained DTP certification. Remaining
prescribed certification under any | one director have more than 13 years of
director training program offered | experience as directors of the Company. By
by institutions, local or foreign, | virtue of their experience, they will also not
that meet the criteria specified by | require for DTP once they complete the
the Commission and approved by | remaining term of qualification. One of the new
it. director was appointed on Feb 17, 2025 and is
required to complete his training on or before
February 16, 2026.
4 Audit Committee Board has discussed and Approved TORs of 27(4)
Audit Committee in BOD meeting held on
Audit Committee terms  of | October 07, 2025.

references should be prepared
and approved by the Board of
Directors
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5 Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee

Human Resource and
Remuneration Committee terms of
references should be prepared
and approved by the Board of
Directors

Board has discussed draft TORs of Human
Resource and Remuneration Committee in
BOD meeting held on October 07, 2025.
Board has recommended to update/reframe
some clauses of TORs which was duly discuss
and approved in upcoming BOD meeting
expected to be held on October 30. 2025/

28(6)

6 Disclosure  of
policies on website

significant

The Company may post key
elements of its significant policies,
brief synopsis of terms of
reference  of the Board's
committees on its website and key
elements of the directors'
remuneration policy.

Although these are well circulated among the
relevant employees and directors, the Board
may consider posting such policies and
synopsis on its website in near future.

35

=

Nadeem Khalid

Chief Executive Officer
Date: October 07, 2025
Peshawar

W

Numrah Khalid
Director
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Tel: +92 51 260 4461-5 3rd Floor,
Fax: +92 51 260 4468 Saeed Plaza,
www.bdo.com.pk 22-East Blue Area,

Istamabad-44000,
Pakistan.

REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of

Frontier Ceramics Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with
the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations,

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status
of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited

primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks,

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of
section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to
assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties and that whether
the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2025, '

We draw your attention to Clause 19 of the Statement of Compliance which mentions certain

instances of non-compliance accompanied by explanation for the deviation with the Regulations of
the Code of Corporate Governance. w24,

ga"é)zfé’ézﬁ%

ISLAMABAD
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
DATED: OCTOBER 13, 2025 Ergagoment Partiers AHF Riaz
UDIN; CR202510060xSfteUqz|
BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
B0O0 Ebealim & €o., a Pakistan reglstered partaerchip fum, 15 a mermber of B0O Wnternational Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,

and forms part of the international BUO network of independent member finms.
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ird Floor,

B ! )() Tel: +92 51 260 4461-5 3 flocs,
s 4468 '
l m 9b;:_12 1cgsﬁ.pk 22-East Blue Area,
o Islamabad-44000,
Pakistan.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2025, the statement of profit or
loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy information and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained
all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary
for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion, except for possible impact of the matter on the financial statements described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, and the statement of cash
flows, together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company's affairs as at June 30, 2025 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

As disclosed in Note 10.2 to the financial statements, subsequent to the year end, the Board of
Directors of the Company in a meeting held on October 7, 2025 has resolved to discontinue the
Company’s previously planned land acquisition for the new business unit and to withdraw from the
Land Sale Agreement dated January 08, 2021, executed between the Company and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company for a total consideration of Rs. 1.134 billion. As explained in the
Note, it has also been mutually agreed between the Company and the CEO, that out of the total
advance paid as at June 30, 2025, amounting to Rs 750.837 million, an amount of Rs. 200 million will
be refunded to the Company by May 2026, while the further payment, if any, will be paid after June
30, 2026, with mutual agreement between the Company and the CEO, as the CEO has sought
compensation for the Company’s withdrawal from the Land Sale Agreement. The Board has directed
the management to engage with the CEO to reach to an equitable and transparent settlement.
Accordingly, the Company has classified Rs. 200 million under current assets which constitutes a
departure from the requirement of IFRS as the approval of the withdrawal from the Land Sale
Agreement is a non-adjusting subsequent event. Further, the Company has not carried out an
impairment assessment of the recovery of remaining advance against purchase of land amounting to
Rs. 550.837 million. In the absence of such assessment, we are unable to determine the amount of
the adjustment that may be required in the carrying amount of the remaining advance and its impact
in the statement of profit or loss for the Year-')f/bf

BDO Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants

BDO Eteahun & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership fiom, 1s & member of 100 lnternational Limited, a UK company limited by quarantee
and farms part of the irternational BOO network of independent member finms, ¥
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We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable
in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context
of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Sr. No. | Key audit matters l How the matter was addressed in our audit

15 Revenue Recognition (Refer note 5.16 and 33 to the financial statements)
The Company is engaged in the | Our audit procedures included considering the
production and sale of ceramic | appropriateness of the Company’s revenue
tiles. recognition accounting policies and assessing

compliance with the policies in accordance with the
The Company focuses on revenue

as a key performance measure
which could create an incentive
for revenue to be recognised
before the risks and rewards
have been transferred, resulting
in a significant risk associated
with revenue from an audit
perspective.

applicable financial reporting framework.

Control testing over the point of transfer of risk and
rewards was supported by substantive audit
procedures including, amongst others:

* Performing analytical tests on the revenue;

« Testing a sample of sales transactions around year
end to ensure inclusion in the correct period;

e Testing of a sample of sales from sales tax returns

Due to the significant risk back to the underlying invoices and customer
associated with revenue records and vice versa;

recognition and the work effort | o Testing of a sample of receipts from customers
from the audit team, the against bank records and related invoices;
recognition of revenue s |, Comparing of a sample of dispatch documents and

considered to be a key audit
matter,

gate passes against recorded sales and invoices.

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
BDO Furatim & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership tirm, s a member of B0O International Limited, a UK company limited by Quarantee,
and forms part of the international B00 network of ndependent member 1irms

s
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Sr. No. | Key audit matters | How the matter was addressed in our audit
2, Related party transactions (Refer Note 52 in the financial statements)

The Company has significant long | We assessed the management controls over
/ short term lending’s and | identification, capturing and recording of related
borrowings with the related | party transactions and performed  following
parties,  further  significant | procedures:

amount of advance against land
is also provided to related party. | « Reviewed contract with related party against
borrowings, lending, and advances for land;

Due to the large number of |« Reviewed minutes of meeting of board of

transactions with the related directors for the discussion and authorisation of
parties, we consider it as an area related party transaction;

of significant risk, and hence this [ ¢«  We circulated confirmation request to the related
was identified as key audit parties regarding the transactions carried out with
matter. them and their balances as at year end;

» We evaluated the adequacy of the related party
disclosures in the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Co., a Pakistan registered partaership fum, ts a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company Limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the imemational BDO network of midependent smember Tims,
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the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentationw

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahim & Ca., a Pakistan registered partnership (iom, s a member of 800 International Limited, a UK campany Limited by quarantee,
and farms part ol the witernationat BDO network of independent membier firms,
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We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, except for the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our
report, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017

(XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of

comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017
(XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the

purpose of the Company's business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors report is Atif Riaz.

SLAMABAD BG4

BDO EBRAHIM & CO.,

DATED: OCTOBER 13, 2025 CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

UDIN: AR202510060JTNfdbDg1

BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

BDO Ebrahwm & Co., a Pakistan registered partnership firm, 15 a member of BDO International Lumited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the wternational BDO network of independent member firms,
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FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Long term deposits
Long term advances

CURRENT ASSETS
Stores, spares and loose tools
Slock in trade
Trade debts
Other receivables
Due from related partics
Advances
Tax refunds due from Government
Taxation - net
Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital
Discount on issuc of right shares

Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment
Unappropriated profits

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Loan from related parties
Deferred liability
eferred taxation

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Unclaimed dividend
Current portion of long term financing
Current portion of GIDC payable

Current portion of liability under diminishing Musharaka

Due to related parties
Contract liability
‘Srade and other payables

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Note

1
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

22

24
27
28

32

The annexed notes from 1 1o 56 form an Integral part of these financial statements,

\‘\?«“ {{\“ N
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CHIEF FINANCIAL OF FICER

CHIEF EXLEC

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
2,431,024,130 2,645,028,257
489,741 515,517
2,431,513,871 2,645,543,774
5,925,450 5,925,450
550,880,130 592,148,042
2,988,319,451 3,243,617,266
233,692,687 275,632,704
561,169,457 492,897,078
21,829,614 21,829,614
2 3,628,800
236,469,796 -
71,010,671 65,692,331
111,861,137 162,950,265
- 28,490,906
64,658,609 73,148,026 |
1,300,691,971 1,124,269,724
4,289,011,422 4,367,886.990
378,738,210 378,738,210
(180,795,726) (180,795,726)
197,942,484 197,942,484
1,201,961,278 1,269,707,082
522,622,187 307,380,063
1,922,525,949 1,775,029,629
118,740,891 533,262,876
25,393,458 25,393,458
352,926,346 382,938,517
497,060,695 941,594 851
3,189,224 3,189,224
- 13,097,821
129,395,113 129,379,479
- 8,714,873
1,891,360 37,576,325
744,354,190 836,755,119
990,594,891 622,549,669

1,869,424,778

1,651,262,510

2,366,485,473

2,592,857,361

4,289,011,422

4,367,886,990

>
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FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
Sales - net 33 4,390,409,288 3,419,349,654
Cost of sales 34 (3,989,523,886)  (3,346,735,485)
Gross profit 400,885,402 72,614,169
Distribution cost 35 (14,692,658) (15,650,082)
Administrative expenses 36 (48,409,930) (46,842,340)
Other operating expenscs 37 (27,978,298) (3,934,555)
Operating profit 309,804,516 6,187,192
Other income 38 5,852,387 38,065,632
Finance cost 39 (29,100,601) (143,179,581)
Profit/(loss) before levy and taxation 286,556,302 (98,926,757)
Levy 40 - (26,012,929)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 286,556,302 (124,939.686)
Taxation 41 (139,059,982) 15,026,532
Profit/(loss) after taxation 147,496,320 (109,913,154)
Eamings/(loss) per share - basic and diluted 42 3.89 (2.90)

The annexed notes from 1 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements. &
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FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note
Profit/(loss) afier taxation
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Revaluation surplus on property, plant and cquipnient 22
Deferred tax impact 22

Total comprehensive income for the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-
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2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
147,496,320 (109,913,154)

- 337,125,189
- (54,266,305)
- 282,858,884
147,496,320 172,945,730
9elbs
OFFICER




FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY e
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025 ——
' 0 Reserves
Share capital Capital Revenu®
Revaluation Total
Issued, -Discount. on surplus on  Unapp ropriated
subscribed and  issue of right property, plant profits
paid up capital shares and cquipment .
Note L e ————————— —
Balance as at July 01, 2023 378738210 (180,795,726)  1,161,971,530 242,169,885 1,602,083,899
Total comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year = - - (109,913,154) (109,913,154)
Revaluation surplus on property, plant
and equipment - net of deferred tax - - 282,858,884 - 282,858,884
Transfer from revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment in respect of
incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax 22 - - (175,123,332) 175,123,332 -
Balance as at June 30, 2024 378,738,210  (180,795,726)  1,269,707,082 307,380,063 1,775,029,629
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year ” 5 - 147,496,320 147,496,320
Transfer from revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment in respect of
incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax 22 ~ - (67,745,804) 67,745,804
Balance as at June 30, 2025 378,738,210  (180,795,726)  1,201,961,278 522,622,187 1,922,525.949

The annexed notes [rom 1 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements.
’
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FRONTIER CERAMICS LiMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
2025 2024

: Note Rupees Rupees
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Fash flows before working capital changes 43 533,315,606 269,308,529
Changes in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in current assets:

Stores, spares and loose tools 41,940,017 (5.144,6806)
Stock in trade (68,272,379) (19,914,085)
Trade debts = (246,470)
Other receivables 5 (1,451,520)
Duc from related partics (236,469,796) 160,373,432
Advances (5.318,340) 112,836,779
Increase/(decrease) in current liabilities:
Current portion of GIDC payable 15,634 3,548,319
Duc to related parties 2 (35,684,965) 4,808,696
Contract liability (92,400,929) 659,371,453
Trade and other payables 351,076,096 (680,187,836)
(45,114,662) 233,994,082
Cash generated from operations 488,200,944 503,302,611
Finance cost paid 37 (3,943,983) (15,094,609)
Taxes paid 18 (89,492,119) (71,232,777)
Net cash generated from operating activities 394,764,842 416,975,225

CASH FLLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Advances paid for purchase of land 41,267,912 (41,226,758)
Net cash used in investing activities 41,267,912 (41,226,758)
CASIH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term financing (13,097,821) (32,333,372)
Repayment of liability under diminishing musharaka 26.1 (8,714,873) (12,491,160)
Receipt of loan from related parties 24 164,961,151 228,246,060
Payment of loan from related parties 24 (587,670,628) (493,138,337)
Net cash used in financing activities . (444,522.171) (309,716,809)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and c.ash' cquivalents (8,480,417) 66,031,658
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 73,148,026 7,116,368
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 19 64,658,609 73,148,026
The annexed notes from 1 to 56 form an integral part of these financial statements. yohos @
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d)

Provision for inventory obsolescence and doubtful receivables

The Company reviews the carrying amounts of stores, spares and loose tools and stock in trade on
regular basis and provision is made for obsolescence if there is any change in usage pattern and
physical form of related stores, spares and loose tools and stock in trade. Further the carrying
amount of trade and other receivables are assessed on regular basis and if there is any doubt about

the reliability of these receivables, appropriate amount of provision is made.

Contingencies

The Company reviews the status of all contingent assets and liabilities on regular basis. Based on
expected outcome and experts' judgments, appropriate disclosure or recognition is made.

2025
Note Rupees
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 741 2,431,024,130

Right of use assets T -

2024
Rupees

2,621,671,563
23,356,694

2.431,024,130

2,645,028,257
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10

10.1

10.2

11

12

2025 2024

) Note Rupees Rupees

LONG TERM ADVANCES

Balance at start of the year 972,448 1,083,865

Additions during the year - 117,495

Adjusted during the ycar (928,912) (228,912)
10.1 43,536 972,448

Advance against land 10.2 750,836,594 591,175,594

Less: current portion classified under due from

related parties (200,000,000) -

550,836,594 591,175,594
Balance at end of the year 550,880,130 592,148,042

This represents unsecured, intcrest-free advance given to related partics, Toyota Rawal Motors
(Private) Limited and Rawal Industrial Equipment (Private) Limited, for the lease of vehicles for
employees. This balance will be adjusted against the salaries of employees of the Company. These
are not amortised as per IFRS 9 as the impact of amortisation is not matcrial in respect of these
financial statements.

The Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting held on January 07, 2021 decided in
principal to avail the opportunity of initially acquiring 1,031 kanals of land, off CPEC highway &
Jand-Mianwali Road, Mouza Masan, Tehsil and District Mianwali, from a related party Mr.
Nadeem Khalid (Chief Executive Officer) at payment terms over the period of five years. During
the year, the Company reassessed its future expansion plans and determined that the market is
already saturated, making it unfeasiblc to expand operations by setting up a new business unit and
land sale agreement should be withdrawn with the approval of the Board. Subsequent to year end,
the Board approved the withdrawal of the said agreement and Rs. 200 million will be paid by the
counterparty by May 2026, while the remaining payment will be paid after June 30, 2026 with
mutual agreement between the parties, as the counterparty has sought compensation for the
Company's withdrawal from the Land Sale Agreement.

2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
STORES, SPARES AND LOOSE TOOLS ‘
Stores 232,676,267 269,944,429
Spare parts and loose tools 1,016,420 5,688,275
11.1 233,692,687 275,632,704

Stores, spares and loose tools include items which may result in capital expenditurc but are not
distinguishable at the time of purchase. [lowever, the stores and spares consumption resulting in
capital expenditure are capitalised in the cost of respective assets,

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
STOCK IN TRADE
Raw materials 175,622,674 208,508,635
Work in process 60,627,122 53,121,269
Finished goods 324,919,661 231.267.174
561,169,457 492,897,078

YChs



F
2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
i 13 TRADE DEBTS
h Unsccured - considered good
Trade receivables 32,621,186 32,621,1 86I
Allowance for expected credit loss (10,791,572) (10,791,572)
i 21,829,614 21,829,614
14 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Rent receivable 3,628,800 3,628,800
Provision against doubtful reccivables (3,628,800) .
I - 3,628,800
15 DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES
Current portion of long term advances 10 200,000,000 s
[ Khalid and Khalid Holdings (Private) Limited 15.1 36,469,796 e
236,469,796 -
15.1 Balance at start of the year (3,445,876) 160,373,432
Additions during the year 145,127,502 31,254,746
Mark up 2,422,964 31,615,088
Payments received during the year (107,634,794) (226,689,142)
Balance at end of the year 36,469,796 (3,445,876)
I 15.2 This represents amount advanced to Khalid and Khalid Holdings (Private) Limited, a related party
due to common directorship. The advance is unsecured and interest is charged at 1 year KIBOR +
I 3.25%. The maximum aggregate amount outstanding at the end of any month during the year was
Rs. 45,989,081 (2024: Rs. 163,615,710).
2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
16 ADVANCES
Unsecured - considered good
Advances
- to suppliers 3,668,885 3,668,885
- against letter of credit 17,218,727 12,719,057
- against letter of credit margin 12,071,696 15,234,296
- - security deposit 1,103,246 1,652,200
I - against letter of guarantee 31,904,062 29,297,900
- against salaries 4,971,004 3,062,827
- against expenses 73,051 57,166
l : 71,010,671 65,692,331
TE
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32.1.13 Muhammad Anwar Khan vs FCL

32.1.14

32.2

33

5.1

In this case the applicant filed his suit before the Labour Court. Total claim of the applicant is Rs.
0.775 million. The case is pending before High Court,

EFU vs FCL

FCL sued EFU over not increasing rent of 2 office rooms of FCL occupied by EFU in Karachi.
According to agreement signed on July 26, 2006, for Room No. 102 and additional agreement
signed on May 07, 2007, for Room No 103. EFU was obliged to increase rent of Rooms @ 10%
per annum, but EFU did not comply with this rcquircment. However, decision of court is still

pending,

2025 2024
<> Note Rupees Rupees
Commitments
The Company has the following commitments:
- against letter of credit
- against import of raw materials 113,746,555 139,740,170
- against import of stores and spares - 14,610,153
- against purchase of land from CEO - 542,924 406
113,746,555 697,274,729
Commitments for Ijarah arrangements
Not later than one year - 3,364,878
Later than one year and not later than five years = 6,173,246
- 9,538,124
SALES - NET
Gross sales - tiles 5,345,847,855 4,162,245,780
Less:
Trade discounts 33.1 (135,806,538) (105,246,895)
Sales tax (819,632,029) (637,649,231)
4,390,409,288 3,419,349,654

This represents trade discount fo specific customers. The ceramics industry was included in The
Thi;d Schedule of Sales Tax Act, 1990 through Finance Bill 2019-2020. This shifted the
responsibility of the Company to charge sales tax on the retail price. Previously sales tax was

charged on the ex-factory price i.¢. excluding dealer margin from the retail price. :
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421

43

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company, which is based on:

Note
Profit/(loss) after taxation (Rs.)

Weighted average (number of shares)

Earnings/(loss) per share - basic and diluted (Rs.) 42.1

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
147,496,320 (109,913,154)

37,873,821 37,873,821

3.89 (2.90)

There were no convertible / dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding at June 30, 2025 and

June 30, 2024.

Note
CASH FLOWS BEFORE WORKING
CAPITAL CHANGES
Profit/(loss) before levy and taxation
Adjustment for non-cash items:
Depreciation : 1.2
Provision against doubtful receivables 36
Finance cost 39

Gas infrastructure development cess

Page 86

2025
Rupees

286,556,302

2024
Rupees

(98,926,757)

214,029,903 227,229,457
3,628,800 g
29,100,601 143,179,581

: (2,173,752)
246,759,304 368,235,286
533,315,606 269.308,529
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Company's exposure to interest rate risk on its {inancial assets and liabilities are summarised as follows:

Interest / mark up bearing

Non interest /

2025 Total Maturity up to one Maturity after one Subtotal marksp bearing
year year
Rupees
Financial assets
Carried at amortised cost
Long term deposits 5,925,450 - - - 5.925.450
Trade debts 21,829,614 - - - 21,829.614
Other receivables - - - - -
Due from related parties 236,469,796 236,469,796 - 236,469,796 -
Advances 33,007,308 - - - 33.007.308
Cash and bank balances 64,658,609 30,452,518 - 30,452,518 34 206,091
361,890,777 266,922.314 - 266922314 094 968.463
Financial liabilities '
Carried at amortised cost
Loan from related parties 118,740,891 - 118,740,891 118,740,891 -
Gas infrastructure development cess 129,395,113 129,395,113 - 129,395,113 -
Unclaimed dividend 3,189,224 - = = 3.189.224
Due to related parties 1,891,360 - - - 1.891.360
Trade and other payables 946,136,190 - - - 946,136,190
1,199,352,778 129,395,113 118,740,891 248,136,004 951,216,774
On statement of financial position gap (837.462,001) 137,527,201 (118,740,891) 18,786,310 (856,248,311)
Off statement of financial position items
Financial commitments:
Letter of credits 113,746,555 - - - 113,746.555
Against purchase of land 383,263,406 - - - 383,263,406
497,009,961 = = e 497.009.961
Total Gap (837,462,001) 137,527,201 (118,740,891) 18,786,310 (856.248.311)
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46

46.1

46.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
Risk management policies

The Company’s objective in managing risks is the creation and protection of shareholders’ value.
Risk is inherent in the Company’s activities, but it is managed through a process of ongoing
identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The process of
risk management is critical to the Company’s continuing profitability. The Company is exposed to
credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk (which includes interest rate risk and price risk) arising
from the financial instruments it holds.

The Audit Committec oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role
by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working
capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to
minimise risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognised at the reporting date if counter
parties fail to perform as contracted and arises principally from trade and other receivables. The
Company’s policy is to enter into financial contracts with reputable counter parties in accordance
with the internal guidelines and regulator requirements.

Exposure to credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counter-party to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from short term lending,
advances, deposits, trade debts, other receivables and bank balances. The carrying amount of
financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at
the reporting date was:

2025 2024
Description Note Rupees Rupees
Long term deposits 9 5,925,450 5925450
Trade debts 13 32,621,186 32,621,186
Other receivables 14 - 3,628.800
Due from related parties 15 236,469,796 -
Advances 16 33,007,308 20,950,100
Bank balances 19 64,545,859 72,970,463
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2025 2024
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53 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Total number of employees at the year end_ 732 765
Average number of employees during the period 745 787
54 CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the purpose of
comparison and better presentation.
The following figures have been rearranged / reclassified to enhance the understanding of
disclosure:
From To 2024
Cost of sales - Depreciation Administrative expenses - Depreciation 27,133
55 DATE OF AUTHORISATION
These financial statements are authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on
0 7 OCT 2025
56 GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.
“ s
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FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED
Pattern of Shareholding
As of June 30, 2025

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children

MR. JAVED KHALID 2 1,957,500 5.17
MR. OMER KHALID 2 6,750,739 17.82
MR. NADEEM KHALID 2 7,237,768 19.11
SANAH KHALID 2 6,915,174 18.26
MS. SHABINA ANJUM 1 200 0.00
MR. MUHAMMAD RIAZ KHAN 1 200 0.00
MR. MUHAMMAD NEHMATULLAH TOOR 1 100 0.00
SHAZIA KHALID 1 2,446 0.01
ZIA KHALID 1 2,446 0.01
AMERA KHALID 1 6,750,739 17.82
NUMRAH KHALID 1 6,750,739 17.82
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties - - -
NIT & ICP 1 39,700 0.10
Banks Development Financial Institutions, Non Banking Financial Financial Institutions. 2 106,200 0.28
Insurance Companies 2 142,500 0.38
Modarabas and Mutual Funds 1 14,500 0.04
General Public
a. Local 946 1,193,793 3.15
Foreign Individuals 8 6,375 0.02
OTHERS 5 2,702 0.01
Total 980 37,873,821 100.00
Share holders holding 10% or more Shares Held Percentage
MR. OMER KHALID 6,750,739 17.82
MR. NADEEM KHALID 7,237,768 19.11
SANAH KHALID 6,915,174 18.26
AMERA KHALID 6,750,739 17.82
NUMRAH KHALID 6,750,739 17.82
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FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED
Pattern of Shareholdings
as at June 30, 2025

# Of Shareholders Shareholdings'Slab Total Shares Held
185 1 to 100 8,751
629 101 to 500 278,203

78 501 to 1000 74,088
93 1001 to 5000 231,865
18 5001 to 10000 127,454
5 10001 to 15000 68,100
6 15001 to 20000 108,446
1 20001 to 25000 20,800
4 35001 to 40000 148,855
4 40001 to 45000 177,000

1 45001 to 50000 49,700

1 65001 to 70000 68,600
2 95001 to 100000 199,500
1 160001 to 165000 164,435

1 1955001 to 1960000 1,957,000

1 2315001 to 2320000 2,320,000

1 4430001 to 4435000 4,430,739
3 6750001 to 6755000 20,252,217
1 7185001 to 7190000 7,188,068
1035 37,873,821
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PROXY FORM

I/'We

of

being a member(s) of FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED and a holder of

ordinary Shares as per share Register Folio No.

herby appoint Mr.

of of failing him
Mr.

of who is also
a member of FRONTIER CERAMICS LIMITED Vide Folio No. as my proxy in my/our absence to attend

and vote for me/us and on my /our behalf at the Fortieth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday

October 28, 2025 at 9:00 am Company‘s Registered Office situated at 29-Industrial Estate, Jamrud Road, Peshawar.

Signed by said
Witness: Witness
(Signature) (Signature)

Name: Name
Address: Address:
CNIC No: CNIC No:

Please affix

Rs. 5/- (Revenue Stamp) Signature of member(s)

Note:

1. Duly completed forms of proxy must be deposited with the Company Secretary at the Frontier ceramics Limited
Registered Office situated at 29-Industrial Estate, Jamrud Road, Peshawar.no later than 48 hours before the time
fixed for the meeting.

2. Proxy must be given to a person who is a member of the Company, except in the case of Companies where the
proxy may be given to any of its employee for which certified true copy of Power of Attorney and / or Board
Resolution with regard to appointment of proxy should be attached.

3. In case the proxy is the beneficial owner of CDC, an attested copy of his / her CNIC or Passport must be enclosed.

4. The proxy shall produce his / her valid original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

5. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are deposited by a member
with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be rendered invalid
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